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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPCARAMCC

The Newark Orphan Asylum can be described as an 
Elizabethean Gothic style; reminiscent of the castellated struct 
ures of the 15th- and 16th centuries. The exterior has been 
altered very little since being built. The interior was altered 
after 19^8 when the Asylum was purchased by Newark College of 
Engineering and used as classrooms and adminstratlve offices.

Original Interior.
(Description taken from the Newark Daily Mercury. July 1, 

185?)• The entrance had a large hall and stairway. Beneath the 
stairway, in the rear, was a large pantry. Immediately out of 
the hall was a large and comraodius kitchen, with ranges, closets 
and hot and cold running water. The walls of this room were of 
marble finish. The dining room was located on the North side of 
the building and a meeting room directly adjacent. There was 
also a sitting-room which fronted on High Street.

The stairway railing in the center hall was Black Walnut, 
one of the finest in the state.

On the second floor, to the right of the hall was the 
Matrons 1 sleeping-room and adjoined to this was a nursery and 
nursery bedroom (with conveniences), in the Southeast portion 
of the edifice. Adjoining the nursery was a teachers' room. 
The principal room on the second floor was the school room 
which extended the whole length of the building. This room 
easily seated 150 children.

On the third floor the principal rooms were : the girls 1 
wash room, sleeping apartments, alteachlng room,&the boys* wash 
room. The bathing rooms all had hot andcold running water. The 
attic, or fourth floor, had only two finished rooms which were 
designed for emergency hospital purposes. To the right, of these 
rooms was a large garret containing tanks which supplied that 
side of the building with water.

The basement of the building had seven large rooms; a 
vegtable room, a laundry, a baking-room, a furnace room, and 
a boys' playroom.

Present Interior.
As previously mentioned the interior was greatly modernized 

by Newark College of Engineering when they purchased the 
building in 19^8 and transformed it into admlnstrative offices. 
Only the attic of the 1857 building f with timber beams held 
together by wooden pegging, shows any evidence of its original 
purpose.

Original Exterior.
Nearly the entire Eberhardt Hall is as it was constructed

in 1857. ' v
— With evidences of Doth Elizabethean and Flemish style. 

Gothic the Asylum is a red brick and brownstone structure 
129 feet in length. On high ground overlooking downtown / 
Newark, the building is 3£ stories high with a center ha 
tower. The central tower has a castle-like appearance wi
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

ARCHITECTURE.
Originally the Newark Orphan Asylum, this Flemlsh- 

Elizabethean Gothic Revival structure was termed "Sliz- 
abethean11 by the contemporary local newspapers. It was 
superbly situated and enclosed bv walls on high ground 
overlooking downtown Newark. The architect, -J^hn u»i^K^ 
was a noted church architect, who concentrated much of his 
work In the Newark. Welch was one of the founders of the 
American Institute of Architects.

4 The Orphan Asylum was originally constructed with a view 
the erection of an additional wing making the tower the 
center of the structure. This addition was made in 18?^, 
by Thomas A. Roberts of Newark, and was identical to the 
northern wing.^

The structure had many modern conviences, a distinct 
rarity in 1857. The principal rooms were lighted by gas f 
and all rooms were steam heated. There was hot and cold 
running water in the building and a crude but effective 
fire extinguishing system.

SOCIAL-HUMANITARIAN.
The Newark Orphan Asylum accepted orphans throughout 

the state of New Jersey. It was built with the child's 
welfare and convenience in mind. Along with the center hall 
exit there were also side hall emergency exits and, as 
mentioned a system to quench fires. Even many prosperous 
private homes did not have hot and cold running water 
within their walls.

There was also an Independent school system set up 
for the education of youngsters living in the building.

Organized in 18^8 by a group of people associated 
with the First Presbyterian Church the Newark Orphan 
Asylum was chartered the next year by the New Jersey 
State Legislature. However, within a few years accomadatlons 
of the original Orphanage were not sufficient. Therefore, 
a site was purchased In 1853 f and, shortly thereafter, 
work begun.

The Asylum was used as an orphanage until 19*1-8 when 
the Newark College of Engineering purchased the property.



Newark Daily Mercury. July 1, 1857, A long descriptive
paragraph from which most of the Interior description 
was derived.

Newark Dally Advertiser. August 21, 1856; September 9, 13, 
& 16, 1856; July 1, & ?, 1857; November^, 11, & 12, 
1857; February 19, 187*M February 27, 1875; May 19 & 
20, 1875.

Newark News. May Ik, 19*1-8.
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As the designated State Liaison Officer for the Na­ 

tional Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law 

89-665), I hereby nominate this property for inclusion 

in the National Register and certify that it has been 

evaluated according to the criteria and procedures set 

forth by the National Park Service. The recommended 

level of significance of this nomination is: 

National State Local

I hereby certify that this property is included in the 

National Register.

Chief, Office of Archeology/aid Historic Preservation

Date

.chard Jf Sullivan

Title Commissioner, Department 
of Environmental Protection

pate January 29, 1973
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7. Description (cont.)

buttresses to the North and a six story octagonal turret 
to the South. The tower is castellated with battlements.

The North and South wings of the building indicate 
the Flemish influence, being multlcurved gable fronts, 
each pierced by curved three-sided windows. Beneath these 
"Gothic1* windows are three windows and immediately beneath 
those are battlemented b?y window projections which 
continue to the ground. The roof is pierced by many 
triangular dormer windows.

In 1,874 a South wing was added to the main structure, 
constructed of identical material as the original. As a 
matter of fact, the original plans called for this South/ 
wing to be added later as the situation warranted.

CONORES ilONAL REPRESENTATION

Senator Clifford P. Case
Senator Harrison A.. Williams
Representstive Peter tf. Rodino, Jr., 10th District


